
1.  Question:   I am not certain of the forms, which need to be included. Could you place just the required forms at one site, which we could then download?  

Answer:  The Certification forms will be posted as an attachment to the solicitation file or a corrected link made in the file or both.

2.  Question:  After reading through the solicitation guidelines, I noticed on page 16 under "project narrative" that the page limit describing the actual proposed concepts was only 5 pages. Such a page limit seems a bit small. Although we can certainly streamline the proposal to describe the project in five pages, much detail regarding the operation and design of the devices sould be left out or compromised. Why is there a 5 page Limit? 

Answer:  The 5 page limit for the "project narrative" was established as a reasonable compromise between an even smaller limit and avoiding extensive write-ups received in past applications that included background material, justification for nuclear power or other general information, and extensive detail.  Extensive write-ups make it hard for reviewers to find the important material in the narrative.  The narrative should be crisp, clear, and easy for reviewers to follow.  It should describe the work proposed with minimum background or generalized justification.

3. Question: I am starting my budget on October 1 and ending on September 30 for every year of my project.  Is this correct?

Answer:  This is acceptable; however due to selection and funding process DOE will go through, it is very likely that the budget and project period dates will be negotiated with those selected for award. More importantly is that the project is broken down into 12-month budget periods in order for DOE to review.

4. Question: For a subaward to a National Laboratory, do we need to show the breakdown and justification in our submitted budget?  Should we just include the lab as a line item in our budget sheets?

Answer:  Show the National Laboratory as a Line item cost. DOE will evaluate National Laboratory costs using other approved budget/cost reviews.
5. Question: Form DOE F 4620.1 (available for download from "forms" page) has section that provides justifications for budget elements. However, the announcement requests separate "budget justification file". Does this request refer to the corresponding section of DOE F 4620.1or separate file must be prepared?

Answer: The information requested in the Budget Justification File supplements the information in the 4620.1 justification.  DOE is requesting that the entire proposal, if all possible, be submitted as one file. DOE is planning to provide submission instructions.
6. Question: It is requested that Project Summary must be submitted as MS Word file. There are no similar requests for other sections except “Graphics Attachment which has to be submitted as PDF file. It is not clear what file format should be used for other files, MS Word or PDF?

Answer: To avoid pagination issues DOE strongly encourages all files be submitted as PDF.

7. Question: I wish to clarify the deadline for proposals.  The DOE e-center synopsis gives 

July 16, 2004, 3 p.m. Mountain Time as the deadline.  The announcement cover page gives the deadline as July 30, 2004, 5 p.m.  Could you clarify the deadline date and time for me? 

Answer:  Proposals are due July 16, 2004, not later than 5:00 p.m. Mountain Daylight Time. Also please provide one hard copy, for quality control purposes. See the solicitation for mailing address and instructions.

8. Question: My question concerns graphics to be included in the proposal. Under item IV.2.D.iv Project Narrative File it is stated that "The project narrative section must not exceed 5 pages. Graphics and visual material, including charts ... will be counted in the page limitation for this section". However, we are instructed in the following paragraph, and in section IV.2.D.vi, to include all graphics material in a separate PDF file. Please advise us on how these 2 statements will be reconciled. Will the total number of pages in each of these files be summed to test the 5-page limit? In this case how will a fraction of a page be counted?

Answer: The project narrative is limited to 5 pages, graphics, charts and visual material will count as part of the 5 page narrative if they are meant to be part of the narrative. 

9. Question:  What are the restrictions, if any, on participation by foreign concerns?  This could include participation by foreign businesses with significant business interests in the US or a US firm sharing results with a foreign subsidiary.  Are NAFTA-countries exempted from these restrictions?  
Answer:  Foreign collaborators are allowed on a cost sharing basis, but no NERI funds will be provided to foreign entities.  Subcontracts with foreign concerns must be at no cost to NERI.  

Partners or subcontracts with a foreign concern may be subject to EPACT review at the discretion of the contracting officer and/or the NERI program. EPACT basically says:

The "Eligibility Requirement" requires prime applicants to be United States owned companies.  The term United States-owned Company means: (1) A company that has majority ownership by individuals who are citizens of the United States, or (2) A company organized under the laws of a State that either has no parent company or has a parent company organized under the laws of a State. At the discretion of the Contracting Officer and/or the NERI program, a successful applicant must submit a completed "EPACT Certification" which is under "Federal Assistance Application and Administration Forms" on the DOE Idaho application forms web site at http://www.id.doe.gov/doeid/psd/proc-div.html.  DOE will make a determination of eligibility after a review and analysis of the answers provided in this certification.

In addition, if the prime applicant receives an award of Financial Assistance, that applicant should be prepared to comply with the provisions of the  "Buy American Act" (41 U.S.C. 10a.-10c.) which requires awardees and their subcontractors, and suppliers to use only materials, supplies and manufactured items which have been produced in the United States.  There are no exceptions for NAFTA-countries under either of these requirements.

10. Question: With regard to the all cap sentence under Project Narrative, "DOE WILL EVALUATE AND CONSIDER ON ONLY THOSE APPLICATIONS THAT ADDRESS SEPARATELY EACH OF THE MERIT REVIEW CRITERION AND SUB-CRITERION", how does one accomplish? How to accomplish the "SEPARATELY" condition with simple paragraph narrative?

Answer: The intent of the capitalized sentence was to ensure review criterion and sub-criterion are addressed within the Project Narrative. There is no one right format to address the criterion and sub-criterion nor is one implied in the solicitation. To avoid future confusion DOE will strikeout the capitalized sentence on page 16 under Project Narrative.

Question 11: It would seem to me that if specific lab personnel are contacted by a university, and such National Lab personnel are not involved in any of the current GEN-IV, AFCI, or NHI programs (including their up and down management chains), they should be eligible to participate.  Of course, such participation may then disqualify them from participating in any type of review process due to conflict of interest. What is DOE position on this issue?

Answer:  Laboratory personnel may participate as a collaborator in a university’s application for a proposed project provided they are not National Technical Directors (NTDs) or System Integration Managers (SIMs) for the AFCI, Generation IV, or NHI programs, or their direct reports.  Applications may propose to fund laboratory collaborators as part of the application cost proposal or under other AFCI, Generation IV, or NHI program funds.

Applicants may also propose participation by a national laboratory that would not be allowed by the preceding by including such work in their application without concurrence or support by the laboratory.  In this case the application will be evaluated and if selected the necessary support by the laboratory would be funded under other AFCI, Generation IV, or NHI program funds.

Collaboration or participation by laboratory personnel would exclude them from the merit review process,; however they may participate in the relevance review process.

Question 12: How are National Laboratory Costs treated with regard to a University's indirect rate/cost?


Answer: If national laboratories are to be included in the Applicant’s cost estimate, the laboratories costs should be shown as a line item cost under subcontracts.  National Laboratories will be funded by other approved methods and university indirect costs should not be added. 
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